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Gabin
DeGray Venderbilt
Jerry Johnson
Andie Simon, President, Kamehameha
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Parent Organization for Kapalama
Campus
Katherine "Lokelani" Patrick,
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and President, Parent Teacher 'Ohana
Frank Brandt, PBR Hawaii
Dr. Rod Chamberlain
Yuki Takamoto
Vincent Shigekuni, PBR Hawaii
James Stone, Group 70

20
·PRESS:

None

21
22
23

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

(Gavel.)

Going to call the Land Use

24

Committee meeting to order.

25

meeting for June 17th, 2002.

Land Use Committee
Good morning, Council
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members.

1

2

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Good morning.
This morning we have Councilmember Kane,

4

Carroll, Hokama, Johnson, Molina, Nishiki, and

5

Tavares present.

6

We have also representing the Planning Department

7

Joe Alueta.

Councilmember Kawano is excused.

Representing our Committee Yvette

8

Bantilan and David Raatz.

9

CONDITIONAL PERMIT TO OPERATE "UNCLE HARRY'S" FRUIT
STAND (KEANAE (C.C. No. 02-11)

28

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Council members, this morning we have

11

three items on our agenda.

12

Item LU-28, the Conditional Permit to operate Uncle

13

Harry's Fruit Stand in Keanae.

14

person signed up to testify on this item, and this

15

is Carmen Joanne Gavin, who is the owner of Uncle

16

Harry's Fruit Stand and she is the applicant for the

17

permit.

18

make your presentation.

19

MS. GABIN:

members.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

22

MS. GABIN:

We have just one

So at this time, Carmen, would you like to

Yes, thank you.

20

We will be starting with

Good morning, Council

Good morning.

Today I am before you seeking your approval

23

for a Conditional Permit as required by the County

24

of Maui in order that I may continue to operate my

25

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

4

LU 06/17/02

1

fruit stand.

2

throughout the 16 years of my fruit stand's

3

operation, I have done my best to comply with the

4

County and State requirements.

5

best in being supportive of the Keanae Wailua

6

community by hiring family and others within the

7

community to work full or part time at the fruit

8

stand; by purchasing agricultural and craft items

9

from community members; and providing donations for

10
11

Since its opening in late 1985 and

I have also done my

school and community activities.
In a very few years I will be able to retire

12

and am looking forward to spending more time at my

13

Keanae home and fruit stand.

14

generated from the fruit stand will provide me with

15

additional adequate income to supplement my

16

retirement pension and personal lifestyle in Keanae.

17

I do have a question to ask of you as part of my

18

testimony.

19

extension of ten years to operate my fruit stand,

20

which will run until January 31st, 2011.

21

ask of you that I also be approved for a Conditional

22

Permit of ten years instead of the five years, thus

23

both permits would run concurrently.

24

request -- additional request of you.

25

CHAI R ARAKAWA:

Hopefully the income

I was granted a Special Use Permit time

Than k you.
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Good morning.

1

We have just been joined by

2

Richard Minatoya, who is our Corp. Counsel

3

representative.
Joe, would you like to make a few comments

4
5

6

from the Department.
MR. ALUETA:

Just -- Excuse me.

Just going back to our

7

transmittal letter to the County Council, the

8

project has been -- at least as far as brief history

9

has been around -- It was first approved back in

10

September of 1985.

There was a public hearing for

11

both the State Special Use Permit time extension as

12

well as the Conditional Permit.

13

project site is approximately 144 square feet.

14

far as --

As you know, the

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Can you move the mike in?

16

MR. ALUETA:

a roadside stand the reason it came

As

17

under -- as a Conditional Permit rather than falling

18

under the Agricultural Permit is that --

19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Excuse me, Joe, can you move the mike a

little bit closer?

21

MR. ALUETA:

Excuse me.

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

23

MR. ALUETA:

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

25

MR. ALUETA:

Okay.

Can you hear me now?
Yeah.

All right.

As indicated, the site is -- the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

fruit stand is approximately 144 square feet.

2

reason it did not qualify and needed for a

3

Conditional Permit rather than falling under the

4

County Agricultural Bill was based on the size as

5

well as the items being sold, which is the chips and

6

soda items.

7

Conditional Permit.

8
9

The

And that's the main reason for the

We did hold a public hearing in Hana.

There

was some issues with a cotenant as far as ownership.

10

I understand that has been resolved and during the

11

conditional -- during the review of the State

12

Special Use Permit Condition 12 was added to

13

alleviate some of the concerns of that cotenant.

14

With regards to the additional of the ten

15

years, the Department has no objections or comments

16

on that.

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

Council members, any questions?
Recommendation.

Recommendation, Mr. Chair.

And, I'm

sorry, I yield the floor to Mr. Carroll from Hana.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Councilmember Carroll.

22

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Thank you, Chair.

I would hope

23

that the fellow Council members can support me in

24

supporting the ten years and have the two run

25

concurrently.

I think it's appropriate for this

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

operation and I think they have proved themselves

2

and I feel very comfortable with it.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any other questions

4

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Question.

-- or comments?

Councilmember Hokama.

Mr. Alueta, tell -- can you inform

8

the Committee how far in from the macadamized road

9

is this fruit stand?

10
11

MR. ALUETA:

From the -- I'm sorry, I didn't quite

understand?

Macadam--

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MR. ALUETA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

15
16

From the paved road.

From the paved road.
Is it still within the right-of-way

of the road?
MR. ALUETA:

Oh, no.

As far as I know,

it is not within

17

the right-of-way of the road.

18

You have to access the property, turn down the

19

driveway to the property, and then go to the fruit

20

stand.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

It is clearly off.

And is this -- from some of the

22

testimony from I guess an Isabel Mitchell Gabin or,

23

I'm sorry, from --

24

shared by more than the applicant?

25

MR. ALUETA:

(inaudible.)

Is this a driveway

Yes, it is.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS,
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1
2
3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Is it an -- is it an exclusive

private driveway?
MR. ALUETA:

In the sense that it services only this

4

property, yes.

5

houses that are on the property.

6

It services the fruit stand and the

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Am I

correct in my reading of the

7

material that one of the property owners using this

8

driveway is in opposition of this request?

9

MR. ALUETA:

Yes.

She was -- had concerns over lack of

10

privacy as well as whether or not the liability --

11

who was liable should someone get hurt within that

12

driveway access.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And what is the Department's

position on that?
MR. ALUETA:

The Department really took no position as far

16

as whether or not there was any liability to the

17

county.

18

going back over the minutes, Corp. Counsel present

19

at the time, which was Mr. Minatoya here, advised

20

advised the Hana Advisory Committee that the

21

applicant had the right to apply for the permit and

22

that they were tenants -- common tenants to the

23

property and had full legal access or rights to

24

apply for the permit and for use of the property.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

It was a private issue.

As advised in

Councilmember Hokama, Condition 4 on the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

July 16th, 2001 note that was sent out describes the

2

liability area.

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I understand that, Mr. Chairman.

4

However, if you knowingly approve something, I still

5

believe we can go to court.

6

that other situation and we making approval doesn't

7

give us immunity or indemnification from potential

8

lawsuits.

Mr. Minatoya, any comments or concerns?

9

10

I don't want to leave

MR. MINATOYA:

I think the -- one thing to make clear is

11

that the cotenant was concerned about her personal

12

liability, not necessarily the County's personal

13

the County's liability for approving the permit.

14

any event, you know, any time we give approvals for

15

these types of permits or changes in zoning or SMA

16

permits or what have you, we always face the

17

possibility that we could be liable for something.

18

And that is why the -- there is a standard condition

19

which requires insurance, and that's to protect the

20

County.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

Chairman.

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

25

One more question, please,

Go ahead.
Thank you.

Mr. Alueta, why is your Department
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(808)

524-2090

In

10

LU 06/17/02

1

recommending five years when the State authorized a

2

ten-year special use request?

3

MR. ALUETA:

That was a

I believe it was -- I guess for

4

your -- It's your permit, the Conditional Permit,

5

and it's been a standard to go with the five years

6

on the first time extension, so we were following

7

past practice of the County Council.

8

to the Planning Commission, they had the authority

9

with the property for the State Special Use Permit,

With regards

10

since it was less than 15 acres and we normally go

11

with standard 1-1-3-3-5-5 as far as time extension

12

periods.

13

This being a unique circumstance, once again, that

14

it's been there for the last 16, 17 years with

15

relatively no problems, the Commission at that time

16

felt that they could give -- grant the ten-year

17

permit.

We have in a few cases gone ten years.

18

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Any further questions?

Okay.

If not, the

20

Chair is going to make a recommendation and the

21

Chair's recommending that we pass the bill.

22

am also recommending that the bill that we pass No.

23

2, Section 2 be -- No. 2 be changed, the period of

24

the Conditional Use Permit from five to ten years.

25

Okay.

And I

So the Chair would entertain a motion to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
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1

approve the bill with that ten-year.

2

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

So moved.

Second.

Okay.

It has been moved by Councilmember

5

Carroll, seconded by Councilmember Kane.

6

Discussion, Councilmember Carroll?

7

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:

Again, I think this is the

8

appropriation action and I would hope for the

9

Council members support.

10

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Any other discussion?

11
12

MR. ALUETA:

Mr. Chair.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

14

MR. ALUETA:

Joe.

I believe the applicant would want it to run

15

concurrent with her existing State Special Use

16

Permit and I'm not sure whether there is a method to

17

rather than have it be the ten years from the

18

enactment of the ordinance or to set a specific date

19

so that the applicant would be -- the two dates

20

would line up.

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

23

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Mr. Chair.

Councilmember Kane.
Yeah.

I think what we have before us

24

regarding the ten years from enactment date, which

25

is our practice, I think that is appropriate because
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1

obviously the applicant can't be at two places at

2

the same time to apply for those two permits as far

3

as renewals or perhaps later on the consideration of

4

zoning changes.

5

floor is appropriate for what we're doing, so I

6

don't think it would be necessary for us to make the

7

dates exactly the same.

8
9

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

And I feel the same way.

Any other discussion?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

17

20

Opposed?

VOTE: AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.

No.

We have one no, Councilmember Hokama.

motion passes.

18

19

If not, all in favor

say aye.

12

16

The ten years is

just -- it will work.

10
11

So I think what we have on the

Thank you.

The

Congratulations.

Councilmember Carroll, Johnson, Kane
Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and Chair
Arakawa.
Councilmember Hokama
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.

21

ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill, as revised.

22

23

LU-30 CHANGE IN ZONING FOR HOTEL MOLOKAI (C.C. Nos. 02-76
& 01-242)

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

25

We will now move on to the second item,

which is Land Use Item 30.

This is a change in
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1

zoning for Hotel Molokai.

We have two people who

2

have signed up to testify.

3

Jerry Johnson.

4

to testify, DeGray, you're an old hand at this.

5

have three minutes to testify and at that point you

6

must make a choice.

7

a minute, which would allow you four minutes, or if

8

you cannot finish your testimony at that time, tell

9

us, and then what we'll do is we'll have you come in

DeGray Venderbilt and

For those of you that are coming up
You

You can either tie it up within

10

at the end of the testimony, which just would be

11

after Jerry, and let you speak a few more minutes,

12

three more minutes to conclude your testimony.

13

Okay.

But at the three-minute mark please let us

14

know.

DeGray.

15

MR. VENDERBILT:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of

16

the Land Use Commission.

17

favor of the rezoning for Hotel Molokai.

18

today that Jerry Johnson and Linda Johnson are here,

19

and they have both been a big part of the reopening

20

and renovation of Hotel Molokai.

21

terrific job.

22

get that reopened and for Kanakakai Town.

23

hope that you support this zoning.

24
25

I am here to speak in
I see

They have done a

It's meant a lot to the community to

They have gone through the process.

And I

Even

though we were in the middle of the community plan,
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1

they did go through -- through the rezoning process

2

and it has been designated Hotel in the recently

3

approved Molokai Community Plan.

4

will expound a little bit more on it, but they have

5

done a terrific job and it's a real asset to Molokai

6

and I hope you support the rezoning.

7
8

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

I am sure Jerry

Any questions for DeGray?

Thank you.
If not, thank

you very much, DeGray.
MR. VENDERBILT:
CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Thank you.
Jerry Johnson.

And while Jerry is coming

11

up, I would like to point out for those of us --

12

those that are listening to us and watching on us on

13

TV, normally we would have issues on Molokai

14

discussed on Molokai.

15

Council Chair Pat Kawano to see this done on Maui

16

because he wanted to see this project go through

17

quickly.

18

originated to go through this process and

19

Councilmember Kawano was very active in trying to

20

get that done.

21

scheduled this on Maui and people on Molokai can see

22

this.

23

24
25

We had a special request from

This was the -- originally it was Council

So in order to honor his wishes, we

Jerry.
MR. JOHNSON:
Council.

Thank you very much, Council Chair, County
My name is Jerry Johnson.
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1

owners of Keawalai Group, and the two owners are

2

myself and Kirk Hanson.

3

being here.

4

business.

5

requirements for going through the zoning change to

6

H-1 from Interim.

7

operation since 1965.

8

words, DeGray.

9

reopen.

Kirk apologizes for not

He had to go to the mainland on
But we're here to fulfill the

The hotel has been a continuous
And thank you for the kind

The hotel has been a challenge to

We reopened it and acquired in 1998 and it

10

was kind of a rescue mission at the time.

11

then we have had a lot of support from the local

12

community and the County Council.

13

has grown.

14

almost starting to make money.

15

here for any questions or anything I can offer for

16

your support for the H-1 zoning change from Interim.

17

Thank you.

18
19

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

MR. ALUETA:

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

We have 52 employees now and we're

Okay.

But then again, I'm

Joe, any comments from the

No comments.
Okay.

Council members, any questions for

Jerry, Mr. Johnson?

23

MR. JOHNSON:

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

25

And the business

Department on this project?

20

22

And since

If not, thank you very much.

Thank you very kindly.
Any discussion?

were on Molokai.

This item came up when we

The request came in from Council
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1

Chair Kawano.

And as you know, Molokai has had a

2

very checkered process going through their economics

3

right now and we have had a lot of closures of

4

hotels.

5

much to get into conformity to be zoned properly so

6

that it could continue acting as a hotel.

7

the Council initiated this process.

8

continuation and the conclusion of that process

9

passing this zoning ordinance.

Hotel Molokai was one that we wanted very

And so

This is the

And that is where we

10

are right now, so I believe -- So this was not

11

something that the owners came in on their own.

12

This is something that the Council initiated to try

13

and get the owners to do so that everything would be

14

in compliance.

15

Okay.

Any other discussion?

16

Chair will make a recommendation.

17

recommending passage of the bill.

18

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

If not, the
The Chair is

So moved.

Second.

It has been moved by Councilmember

21

Tavares, seconded by Councilmember Kane to pass this

22

ordinance.

Any discussion?

23

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

If not --

Chairman.

Councilmember Hokama.
Thank you.

I am sorry.
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1

have asked before your motion, Chairman.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

Okay.
But for Mr. Alueta, would you

permit a question?

5

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Absolutely.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Go ahead.

Thank you.

Was there any talk

7

about changing density in the future, Mr. Alueta,

8

regarding the property?

9

MR. ALUETA:

There was no discussion at the meeting.

We

10

did make a note there was -- whether or not they

11

would be able to build to the full maximum potential

12

of H-l.

13

to do that; however, they are located within the

14

Special Management Area permit -- Special Management

15

Area and therefore a new major Special Management

16

Area permit would be required for any type of new

17

construction on the site.

18
19
20

And they said the zoning would allow them

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

What would be the maximum density

and unit count on two and a half acres?
MR. ALUETA:

I'm not familiar with the Building Code.

I'm

21

not sure if anyone from Public Works is here.

22

would have the -- as far as the density and floor

23

area ratios.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

They

This is something the Planning

Department doesn't do on this type of applications
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normally?

2

MR. ALUETA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

4

5

No.

I'll try to find the Title 19 right now.
No conditions of zoning, Mr.

Alueta, and any discussed?
MR. ALUETA:

None were discussed.

As indicated, this was

6

a Council-generated resolution.

We did send it out

7

to agency comments.

8

reply -- And we took it to the Molokai Planning

9

Commission the -- That was on January 9th.

Those agencies that did

No one

10

testified in favor or in opposition to the project.

11

It was relatively straightforward as far as the

12

public hearing goes.
As far as your question in regards to hotels,

13
14

for the H-l District, it did meet the minimum lot

15

standards as far as H-l goes and that's for a 10,000

16

square feet.

17

Chapter 19.14 for the Hotel Districts.

18

of the Code covers both H-M and H-l and H-2.

19
20
21

I'm reading from the Maui County Code,

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

What would be the height maximum

allowed for hotel?
MR. ALUETA:

For height regulations for -- It's two

22

stories for the H-l District.

23

25 percent for the H-l District.

24

ratio is not exceed 50 percent for H-l.

25

This section

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Lot coverage area is

Since we're zoning current now from
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interim, any changes on setbacks from shoreline?

2

MR. ALUETA:

Pardon me?

3

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I did not quite hear that.
Is there any changes in the

4

setbacks from the shoreline that the applicant needs

5

to be aware of?

6

existing?

7

MR. ALUETA:

Or are we just going to go with

He would -- whatever buildings are currently

8

existing nonconforming within the shoreline setback

9

area would be allowed to remain.

They would not be

10

allow to expand there or intensify.

Any new

11

construction, should they do any new construction in

12

the future, would be subject to the new shoreline

13

setback rules.

14

it would probably be 40 feet, but it would be

15

calculated on average lot depth.

16

believe -- So it would be greater than 40 feet.

17

They would require a certified shoreline map.

18

would be advisable to any hotel along the shoreline

19

to keep one current because those are only valid for

20

one year.

21

property it is rocky and sandy, but it is -- even

22

though -- although it is a relatively stable

23

shoreline from my observations of the area due to

24

the shoal -- shallowness and the shoal area, that

25

tends to break it up.

It is a minimum of -- for that area,

I don't -- I

That

Along that coastline fronting that

So -- But that would be my
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1

that would be my advice as far as keeping a current

2

certified shoreline map so that should they require

3

any type of construction or reconstruction, they

4

could easily apply for the permits without having

5

too much delay.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you very much.

Thank you for allowing the question,

7

Chairman.

8

9

Okay.

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

No problem.

Again, this is an existing

10

hotel that's been there a long time, so we're just

11

trying to get it to be conforming.
Any further discussion?

12
13

say aye.

14

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

VOTE: AYES:

18
19
20

Opposed?

Motion carried unanimously.

Thank you very much.

16
17

If not, all in favor

NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
EXC. :
MOTION CARRIED.

Councilmember Carroll, Hokama, Johnson,
Kane, Molina, Nishiki, Tavares, and
Chair Arakawa.
None.
None.
None.
Councilmember Kawano.

21

ACTION:

FIRST READING of bill.

22
33

23
24
25

CHANGE IN ZONING FOR KAMEHAMEHA SCHOOLS (KULA)
No. 02-41)

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Our third item on the agenda today is

LU-33, and LU-33 is a change in zoning for
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Kamehameha Schools in Kula.

We're going to be

2

having a short PowerPoint presentation.

3

anyone that wants to testify that is not going to be

4

part of the presentation or the presentation group?

5

'Cause I have no one at this time.

6

you -- could you testify first,

7

testifying, then you can fill in the form.

Is there

You do.

Could

then after you get

Please state your name for the record since I
9

have not -- I don't have your name in front of me.

. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY

10
11

MS. SIMON:

Okay.

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

13

MS. SIMON:

So you'd like us to testify right now?

Yes, please.

Okay.

My name is Andie Simon.

I am the

14

president of Kamehameha Schools Association of Maui,

15

which is the Border Parent Organization of

16

Kamehameha Schools, Kapalama Campus.

17

testify on the rezoning for the Kamehameha Schools

18

Maui Campus.

19

of KSAM president as well as the Pukalani

20

community -- I live in the community -- in the

21

supporting of the school to be rezoned for school

22

use.

23

blessing that we have this Maui campus here on this

24

island.

25

opportunity to remain home and not have to go to

I am here to

And I come to you as wearing the hat

And as far as my hat for KSAM, it is such a

It affords our children here the
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1

Kapalama.

The build-out that we're looking out for

2

the five-year plan as far as a community member of

3

Pukalani I think is very wonderful.

4

other facilities for our community to use up in

5

Pukalani.

6

Kamehameha, it also gives good dollars or money for

7

our community.

8

their children, they will shop at our nearby

9

shopping centers that are there and utilize the area

We will have

It also -- With the children attending

As parents come, drop off, pick up

10

for the different things that we have in the

11

community.

12

and with the different football or the baseball or

13

the swimming pool that is on the plans for this

14

phase of the Maui campus I think would only bring

15

our community much more lifestyle changes for our

16

children, those that attend Kamehameha as well as

17

the community.

18

our lives for the different things that they're

19

planning to build.

20

that.

21
22

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

It affords all of us -- it enriches

Okay.

Thank you.

So I am in support of

Any questions for Andie?

If

not, thank you very much.

23

MS. SIMON:

24

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

25

I also live not far from the Maui campus

Thank you.

the form?

And you can fill out
Thank you.

You can

Can you fill out
Why don't you take
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1

a seat on the side right in front here, right next

2

to Yvette, fill out the form, so we're not in the

3

way.
And will the person start your testimony.

4

5

And, again, state your name for the record since we

6

don't have it.

7

MS. PATRICK:

Aloha and good morning.

8

Patrick.

9

Kamehameha Schools Maui Campus.

My name is Lokelani

I am a parent of a 7th grader at the
I am also here as

10

the Parent Teacher 'Ohana, which is our PTA group,

11

as its president.

12

parents we are so excited about this campus being on

13

our island.

14

alumni, so I have had the experience of going to the

15

main campus.

16

excited that Kamehameha is on Maui because we are

17

eager for the Kamehameha experience for our

18

children.

19

includes community service.

20

year did community service projects within the Maui

21

campus and we are only looking for greater

22

involvement of our students within the community.

23

also like to add to the fact that Andie said

24

previous is that our plan is for the campus to be

25

available for community use and we will welcome not

And I would like to say that as

I would also like to say I am an

And as parents, like I said, we are so

And the Kamehameha educational plan which
Our middle school last
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only those that are of Hawaiian ancestry, but the

2

Maui community as a whole.

3

only be a blessing for everyone on Maui and I hope

4

that you will go through and pass the zoning change

5

for Kamehameha Schools Maui Campus.

So I think this could

6

Thank you for the opportunity to address you

7

and share the views of not only myself as a parent,

8

an alumni, but as an representative of the parent

9

teacher group.

. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY .

10
11

Thank you.

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Any questions for

12

Lokelani?

13

can please fill out the form.

14

If not, thank you very much.

And if you

At this time we're going to have

15

representatives of Kamehameha School come down and

16

do a Power Point presentation.

17

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

So--

Good morning, Chairman Arakawa and members

18

of the Land Use Committee.

19

I'm a principal at PBR Hawaii.

20

Frank Brandt.

21

We're the agent for the Kamehameha Schools.

22

also present is Yuki Takamoto and Dr. Rod

23

Chamberlain from Kamehameha Schools; and Jim Stone,

24

architect from Group 70.

25

I am Vincent Shigekuni.
With me today is

He's the Chairman of PBR Hawaii.
And

I guess we'll start with the PowerPoint show.
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I believe all of you know where the campus is, but

2

on the graphic on the right the north is on the

3

right side of the graphic.

4

There's an existing road from Kula Highway, and it's

5

known as Aapueo Parkway, to the campus.
Next.

6

It's up in Kula.

This was the original master plan that

7

was in the zone change application.

During the

8

middle of the processing of this application

9

Kamehameha Schools acquired additional acreage.

So

10

the next slides will show the kind of updated master

11

plan.

12

and I will just show you approximately where the

13

zone change this application covers.

14

I would just like to get away from the mike

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

If you could, Vince, you have to

15

use the mike to speak because people in the audience

16

won't be able to hear you.

17

Carry the whole thing.

Just carry that mike.

18

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Okay.

Thank you.

19

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

20

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Can everybody hear me?

21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

22

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Yeah.

Hello.

Basically this is the existing Aapueo

23

Parkway and the parcel is sort of like this so that

24

the current area of application is this area here.

25

What it -- what the additional acreage allowed
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Kamehameha Schools to do is to kind of loosen up and

2

make it lower density campus development.

3

of the buildings are still within the current area

4

of application.

5

But most

This is a view from Aapueo Parkway looking at

6

Kula Highway and this shows that one of the things

7

that Kamehameha Schools did was put a deceleration

8

right-turn lane on Kula Highway.

9

put a left-turn storage lane into Aapueo Parkway.

Similarly, they

10

This shows that they also put in left turn and right

11

turn lanes on the approach to Kula Highway.

12

there's no above-ground utilities on that parkway.

13

And

This is the view of the entry and the two

14

sets of classrooms beyond it.

15

the classrooms and the admin building and also the

16

gymnasium on the right.

17

The gymnasium you can see more clearly here is on

18

the right and the admin building is in the center.

19

And this is a view of the gymnasium.

20

architecture.

21

This shows a view of

It's a little dark.

Sorry.

Very nice

Admin building and drop off.

This is a view from about the cafeteria

22

towards the classrooms, elementary school

23

classrooms.

24

then this is a view from the mauka most portion of

25

the site looking towards the campus.

This is a view of the cafeteria.
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1

just see the tops of some of the classroom

2

buildings.

3

And you can barely see anything here.

And this is pretty much the end of my

4

PowerPoint presentation.

5

questions, we're available to answer them.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

7

Johnson.

8
9

If there are any

Any questions for Vince?

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Yes, thank you.

Councilmernber

And I did see

your presentation also at the Up-Country Community

10

Center, so one of the issues that was raised by

11

individuals at that meeting was in regard to the

12

traffic impact over the period of development.

13

when eventually the project was built out, there

14

were some concerns expressed for the safety of the

15

children who would be traversing that area.

16

was only one way in and one way out.

17

could address some of those concerns, because I

18

don't know what transpired after that meeting in

19

terms of your addressing those.

20

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

There

And if you

Would you be able to go back to the new

21

master plan slide?

22

Thank you, David.

23

So

Oh.

I'm sorry.

Bear with me.

As you can see in the master plan, there is a

24

way to get out to the development makai of

25

Kamehameha Schools.

This would be seen I think
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1

purely as more for emergency purposes, so I wonder

2

if that addresses your question.

3

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

I think what the question,

4

the way that I heard it when I had attended that

5

meeting and I wasn't

6

to listen, but the concern that I heard from the

7

area residents was due to the number of children

8

that would be coming into the area, their concern

9

was primarily how is that going to be addressed if

you know,

I was just there

10

you've got King Kekaulike School nearby, you have

11

your school.

12

people that attended the meeting was that there were

13

safety issues that they were concerned about with

14

the intensification of both the number of children,

15

the cars coming in to drop off the students or

16

buses, whatever, and that how was that going to be

17

working in terms of the traffic -- traffic impact

18

analysis.

19

address that, I think that that was really a concern

20

that I heard from those individuals.

21

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

The impression that I got from the

So if you have somebody that could

I'm sorry.

I misunderstood your question.

22

I believe that when the -- one of the conditions

23

that was recommended by the Planning Department and

24

also put -- sort of adopted by the Planning

25

Commission was that when the school population
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1

reaches 500 students, a traffic impact analysis

2

report would be done.

3

that included the Dowling's Project and up to 500

4

students at the school.

5

actually having that traffic impact analysis report

6

done.

7

happens to be completed by the time this processing

8

is occurring, we'll get it to you folks.

9

now, you know, you have to take traffic counts and

There was one done originally

We are in the process of

As soon as we can get it to Council, if it

But right

10

there's a lot of analysis, so that's underway right

11

now.

12

it.

13
14

Even though it's not required yet, we're doing

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

Okay.

Thank you.

And the second question, if I may, Mr. Chair,

15

the other issue that I had discussed with some of

16

your representatives apropos of a bill that's going

17

through crafting having to do with the lighting

18

standards here in Maui County and some of the light

19

pollution.

20

of the residents in the Up-Country area.

21

that progressing in terms of your addressing those

22

light questions with regard to both protection of

23

the night sky, some of the issues with the petrels,

24

attracting them to the light during that season?

25

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Because this was an issue for also many
How is

I -- we have a representative here that
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can address it more in detail, but from what I

2

understand, we -- Kamehameha Schools was recently

3

granted a variance for field lights at the field.

4

And apparently the project meets -- I guess that

5

lighting ordinance -- some of the lighting ordinance

6

standards were already incorporated when they

7

designed the field lights.

8

further questions, we can have our representative

9

corne up here or we can meet with you or report to

10
11

But if you have any

the full Council at a later date.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

And the only reason I ask this is

12

because it's my understanding that the entire

13

ordinance is still in Committee.

14

corne out for public

15

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

16

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

It has not yet

Oh.
-- you know, approval and hearing,

17

so that's why it's being drafted.

So I just wanted

18

to make sure that you -- you had not expended large

19

sums of money going in with a particular type of

20

lighting and then all of a sudden would have to

21

change, which would add more to the cost of your

22

project.

23

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

24

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

25

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

So-Understood.

Sure.

that was my concern.
Let us report back to you at next
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Council meeting.

2

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

3

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

If that's okay.

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Any further questions?

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Question.

Councilmember Hokama.
Thank you.

Mr. Shigekuni, can you

8

inform the Committee this morning and use this

9

what you have on the screen because I want the

10

people to see, explain the phasing in of this

11

project?

12

current phase, what's the second phase and how this

13

is going to be progress and what is your time frame?

14

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

What's next, second, then cur -- Show your

I think I'll ask Jim Stone, architect with

Group 70, to provide this information.

15
16

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

17

MR. STONE:

18

?:

19

MR. STONE:

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

21

MR. STONE:

Thank you.

Mr. Stone, you have to use the microphone.

Can you all hear me?

A little louder.

There you go.

Can you hear me now?
Yes.

Okay.

Good morning.

I'm James Stone from

22

Group 70 International.

23

and I'm here to present the various phases.

24

currently well aware of the elementary school which

25

has been completed right here.

I am the project architect
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1

admin, the classrooms, the cafeteria.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

Kula Highway --

4

MR. STONE:

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

MR. STONE:

7

8
9

10
11

Okay.

Mr. Stone, show us where the

Kula Highway is actually up here.
Okay.

This is where Dowling's Kulamalu is.

This is

where there are various residences.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

Pukalani Golf Course

proximity.
MR. STONE:

Pastureland.

Pukalani.

This is other parts

of Pukalani over there.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

13

MR. STONE:

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you.

The middle school as we currently are

14

constructing it right now is this is our cafeteria

15

and our vo-tech building, our classrooms, our music

16

building, and the administration.

17

areas are either completed or currently being

18

constructed right now.

19

So these two

The future phase, which we're calling phase

20

3, which is right now being building permitted, will

21

include the building 0, which is the 9th and 10th

22

classroom, the library, the cafeteria, the

23

gymnasium, and the track and field stadium.

24

4, which is the academy is --

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Phase

Can you put some time or dates in?
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1

MR. STONE:

They should be done by summer next year.

2

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

3

MR. STONE:

Okay.

Because Headmaster Chamberlain has got a whole

4

other set of kids coming in.

5

from 500 to 1,100 in the next three years.

6

should give you an idea.

7

We're basically going
So that

Phase 4 is our academies and that basically

8

picks up our sophomores and seniors.

And that is in

9

four separate houses and they are devising an

10

education system that will include a hi-t program,

11

an arts and communication, a business and

12

leadership, and a science and natural resources.

13

And those are four specific areas for college prep

14

where a junior coming in could say, I want to be in

15

hi-t and therefore I want to focus on these things.

16

So we're developing specific academies that will

17

handle the core of your reading, writing,

18

arithmetic, but you will also be able to take

19

various cases that specify and prepare you for your

20

career in the future.

21

Phase 5, which is our last phase, will

22

include a performing arts theater and a chapel.

23

also have coming in in phase 3 support buildings of

24

a facilities maintenance building and a receiving

25

building.

We

So basically when computers come in, they
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come in the front gate, are dropped off here, loaded

2

up and then sent to the campus.

3

you don't want DHL trucks flying around your campus

4

all day.

5

basically all your landscaping and those type of

6

things.

7

also.

10
11
12

And facilities management is just

These baseball stadiums are in phase 4,

Does that adequately cover it?

8

9

Because obviously

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You have no intentions of doing

dormitories?
MR. STONE:

Dormitories are not in our phase 1 through 5

as we currently see it.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

14

MR. STONE:

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Why?

I am not -Don't you think our kids from

16

Molokai and Lanai deserve an opportunity to come to

17

this campus?

18

MR. STONE:

I am the architect.

19

the school.

20

in front of you.

I don't set program for

So I am sure a representative will be

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

And Hana, too.

I would like to bring up Dr. Rod

23

Chamberlain from Kamehameha Schools and he can

24

address that issue.

25

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

When the -- It's important to remember
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that Kamehameha Schools made a decision to start the

2

first permanent campus --

3

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

4

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Identify yourself for the record.

Okay.

Thanks, Dain.

Aloha.

I am Dr.

5

Rod Chamberlain.

I serve as the headmaster of

6

Kamehameha Schools Maui Campus.

7

remember that for 100 years Kamehameha School only

8

had one campus on Honolulu and we are the first

9

permanent campus beyond that.

It's important to

In fact, this first

10

parcel of land was set up as an elementary satellite

11

campus and until two years ago was going to be just

12

that.

13

high school off to Kapalama.

14

acreage, the idea being a K through 12 school very,

15

very important to say how do we move ahead quickly.

16

We are moving ahead very quickly.

17

five-year plan we are working as hard as we can just

18

to get that program up and going.

19

a space on a master plan for future boarding if that

20

becomes necessary and important.

21

focus is on the K through 12 day students, because,

22

again, going from

23

had 170 kids.

24

kids.

25

children on Maui.

We're sending the children from middle and
With the increase in

So in this

We have set aside

At this time our

And, again, two years ago we

Three years from now we'll have 1,120

We're growing ten times the size to serve
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You also may be aware that Kamehameha Schools

2

as an enterprise is looking at the conversion

3

charter school system to try and reach out to serve

4

even more Hawaiians.

5

we're trying to work with communities to serve those

6

needs right now.

7

we don't want to serve Lanai or Molokai or Hana

8

children.

9

can to expand this program.

And right now that's what

So this is not an issue of saying

We are trying to move as quickly as we
And that's really been

10

our focus for these last several years and as we

11

move ahead.

12
13

Did you want to follow up?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Well,

I don't like the answer,

I

14

can tell you that.

I think our children

15

regardless -- you know, one of the reasons this

16

campus is being planned is so that the Maui children

17

don't need to go to Oahu.

18

missing the point about this campus being able to

19

provide the same opportunity to whether it be on

20

East Maui, Molokai or Lanai.

21

children that would like the experience, the

22

opportunity and benefits that the Princess left in

23

her legacy.

24

when you're planning this master plan how you're

25

going to accommodate those children in the far reach

But I still think you're

We've got Hawaiian

And I don't see you taking into account
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2

areas of our County.
MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

And I hear the concern.

I would just

3

add one other piece to it.

As we have enrolled more

4

students from Maui here, it has opened up more

5

boarders for Kapalama so that where children from

6

East Hawaii and Maui used to also be in competition

7

for those 550 beds, those children now are served by

8

day schools.

9

However, yours is not the first voice to raise the

And so that actually opens it up.

10

issue of concern for students in Maui County.

11

will share that as I move ahead with the other

12

chiefs and the trustees.

13

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And I

Okay?

Well, I'm going to be real up front

14

and let you know I'm going to consider making a

15

condition of zoning that you address and you take

16

care of our children that want to be a participant

17

in the rural areas of our County.

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Mr. Chamberlain, in -- I'm going to follow

19

up a little bit on Councilmember Hokama's comments.

20

In looking at this campus and developing out this

21

campus, would the Kamehameha School Board or

22

whichever board you have to answer to, would they be

23

opposed to doing residence on this campus?

24
25

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

They are not opposed to it in due time.

You should realize that the cost per student for
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boarding is significant.

2

the cost for a day

3

is a day student.

4

looking at how do we extend the reach in a cost

5

effective manner.

6

charter conversion school emphasis by the school

7

right now.

8

long term, it's the issue of how best to move ahead

9

with that process.

10
11

In fact, it's about twice

for a boarding student as it
At this point Kamehameha is

That's one of the reasons for the

So they're not opposed to that in the

We have identified a site in

case and when boarding becomes appropriate.
CHAIR ARAKAWA:

In the planning of your site if you were

12

to do residency, how long would it be before you

13

could consider putting those residences in with the

14

plan that you have now, or is it possible to do that

15

as part of the requirements when you do your

16

construction for your early phases?

17

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

You're asking do we have a space set

18

aside to do it and how quickly do we move ahead with

19

that?

20

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Is it possible?

If a condition were to be

21

put in requiring the housing, is that something

22

that's doable?

23

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Well, again, that's one of the things we

24

have to talk with our trustees about and seeing

25

whether that's within their scope and desire to move
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ahead with that.

Again, it would be very difficult

2

to put in at least for the next two years because we

3

don't have -- again, we don't have a full-fledged

4

high school program for another four years.

5

first freshmen actually start in August, in two

6

months from now, so at what point do you say that

7

fits programmatically with students?

8

a site for that.

9

And we are very, very busy just trying to bring the
day program up.

11

staffing right now.

13
14

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Again, we have

We have no specific plans for it.

10

12

Our

So it's a matter of capacity and

Thank you.

Councilmember Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman.

So are you telling this

15

Council Committee this morning that unless they're

16

high school level, boarding is not a consideration?

17

I thought our -- your Oahu campus takes elementary

18

students also for boarding.

19

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

20

7th grade.

No.

21

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

22

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

23

7th grade.

24

boarding.

25

very difficult.

Middle.

Middle level.

Starting at

7th grade.

7th grade.

They essentially start at

Again, there are so many issues with
That's one of the issues that makes it
For example, is it a seven-day
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program?

Is it a family style or a dormitory style?

2

Is it a seven

3

school only?

4

the differences between what you need to do with

5

middle school students versus high school students?

6

Those are all a wide variety of issues that need to

7

be worked out.

five-day or seven-day?
Is it middle school only?

Is it high
What are

One of the things I like about Kamehameha

8
9

Schools is that we have been given some freedom on

10

Maui to do some things that we think work best for

11

Maui rather than saying, well, Kapalama has always

12

done it this way.

13

comes responsibility for due diligence in terms of

14

research and best programming.

15

issue of what does that look like?

16

there's the high school program in itself of what

17

does a 9th grade student do?

18

And then looking, if you add a residential program,

19

what does a residential curriculum look like?

20

not just a matter of building beds and feeding

21

people.

22

that?

23

And that -- with that freedom

And so that's that
And, again,

A 10th grade student?

It's

It's what other programs do you put to

And, again, we're working as hard as we

24

possibly can to get the day program up and going.

25

mean, again, over a five-year period to grow a
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population basically ten times its size as well as

2

the scope is a huge undertaking.

3

encourage all of you, if you have not been up to our

4

campus,

5

what's going on there.

6

place.

7

do all of it at one time.

And I would

just to corne up and to visit us and to see
It's a very busy, exciting

And so it's just a matter of being able to

8

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Any further questions?
You appear to be moving your campus

10

from an educational curriculum philosophy to a

11

very

12

you looking at providing a curriculum that for some

13

of your students may want to be -- use it as more of

14

an education experience to then promote traditional

15

things, whether it be taro farming or maintenance of

16

their family Kuleana lands and what they do on

17

that -- their property, you know?

18

hi-t, that's high tech.

19

other components.

20

certain type of student for your campus?

21

is it only a college-geared curriculum?

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Are

You talk about

You talk about certain

So are you only geared for a

One of the things I like about our

22

campus again is we want to prepare students for

23

both; the idea of preparation for real world work as

24

well as ongoing continuous learning.

25

have talked about an academy approach is the
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integration of both those ideas so that a student is

2

not just learning the theory.

3

the parents and it's one of the disturbing facts

4

that people don't realize that the average college

5

student today spends five and a half years in

6

college because they have a lot of theory, but they

7

don't know how to apply it.

8

vocational programs what happened was that students

9

would learn a trade, but as the materials and

I have shared with

In the traditional

10

systems continued to improve or change, you need to

11

keep learning.

12

ideas together?

13

be applied, practical processes for children in

14

terms of career pathways, not just a college liberal

15

arts program.

16

things together so they continue -- children can

17

continue to learn.

18

And so how do we bring both of those
So the idea of saying there has to

So we're trying to put both those

Now, in terms of some of the traditions, our

19

students are already involved in some of those

20

activities.

21

had a conversation with over 90 different businesses

22

about how might we involve children in internships

23

and other experiences.

24

here's the foundation and I only know how to do that

25

or here is the theory and I only know how to do

And as we move ahead, we have already

So it's not a matter of
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that, it's having the broader picture.

These

2

children will be in a very different world than we

3

are.

4

been invented yet.

5

them and so how do we prepare them.

Over half the jobs that they take have not
And we need to realize that for

We have chosen those four academies, by the

6

7

way, because we believe they reflect the needs of

8

Maui.

9

and to the mainland.

They also are transferrable across the state
So it gives our children a

10

chance to stay here, be leaders, as well as be

11

practical.

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Have you asked your alumni

13

association or talked to another State Department,

14

Hawaiian Homelands or OHA, regarding what Molokai

15

and Lanai may want to see as part of your campus

16

development?

17

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

I have not specifically done that.

I

18

know that -- and I wish Judge Mothman was here

19

today.

20

involved in conversations and I try to work with the

21

alumni association through him.

22

there's been ongoing conversations through our

23

extension education and other groups and our CV

24

neighbor island regional resource coordination about

25

those processes, but I have not specifically been in

He's with church business.

He has been

I do know that
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2

those conversations.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I would ask that you consider that,

3

sir.

On Molokai all of us, you know, we do our

4

Council business there, but you are well aware of a

5

lot of Hawaiian Homeland properties

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Yeah.

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

9

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

that is being underutilized.

Yeah.
We're developing a Hawaiian Homes

10

project on Lanai currently.

11

best interests in this exciting time of master

12

planning your campus in how you can accommodate

13

those people to have this educational opportunities

14

at the same time.

15

determine my support or not for this request,

16

Chairman.
MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

18

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.
Councilmember Molina.
Yeah.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, Dr. Chamberlain.

21

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

And that will definitely make me

Thank you.

17

20

I believe it is to your

Good morning.
Thank you for being here.

Quite welcome.
It was mentioned earlier, please

correct me if I'm wrong, that once the total
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build-out occurs, the school -- the Maui campus will

2

be able to accommodate an estimated 1,100 students?

3

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

That's correct.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Can you give us an estimate

5

right now as to how much staff you have currently as

6

to when the campus will be fully built out how much

7

staff you will have then?

8
9

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

We will -- We have currently 60

full-time equivalents right now.

We will have 106

10

if all of our hiring is done in the next two months.

11

And we project probably about 190 when we're fully

12

done.

13

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

And I only bring this up

14

because of one of our colleagues mentioned a concern

15

about traffic, Councilmember Johnson, in the area.

16

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Yeah.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Compared to the Oahu campus, once

18

the Maui campus is fully built out, how does -- how

19

will the Maui campus stack up to Oahu's campus as to

20

what Oahu has and Maui doesn't have?

21

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

We'll have less traffic.

We'll be about

22

one-third the size in terms of their student

23

population.

24

good thing, you know.

25

educational research today, and I know Dr. Chung and

And that's -- in many ways that's a
When you look at the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

46

LU 06/17/02

1

some of his staff is looking at just the size and

2

how one does that, because when you get to a certain

3

size, there's some other issues that start to

4

emerge.

5

facilities in terms of arts, in terms of athletics,

6

in terms of educational settings.

7

things they don't have.

8

wireless campus right now in terms of technology.

9

For them to retrofit right now is a fairly expensive

So we will have virtually the same kinds of

We will have some

For example, we are a

10

piece.

11

in right now.

12

in terms of technology and integration with that.

13

We believe we'll have some other kinds of expertise

14

on our island because of things like our closeness

15

to the ocean and some of those kind of issues and

16

our focus on academies.

17

had approval of some Centers of Excellence for their

18

campus, which is sort of a -- their way of saying

19

how do we begin to mirror some of the things we're

20

doing.

21

But while we're building, we will build that
So we will be actually ahead of them

Actually, Dr. Chung just

So, you know, in terms of facilities,

in

22

terms of programs, we'll be comparable.

23

the emphasis and focus on our program will be more

24

comprehensive.

25

we'll be more comprehensive.

In terms of

Going back to the previous question,
Rather than saying
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every kid goes right to college right away, we want

2

to provide a wider variety of options for our

3

children.

4

size.

And, again, we'll be about one-third the

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

ask, Mr. Chair.

9
10

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Thank you, Dr. Chamberlain.

Yeah.
And one more question, if I may

Please do.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Regarding the ball field,

there's

11

been some concerns from residents with the King

12

Kekaulike field.

13

blaring and glaring and for some people driving up

14

the hill, it blinds their eyes, so there is a

15

concern with shielding their lights.

16

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

As you know, the lights are

Yeah.
As far as your ball field,

just for

18

the record, you made a commitment to do whatever is

19

necessary to shield the lights?

20

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

That's right.

And we have.

And we have

21

made those comments in the variance hearing a couple

22

weeks ago, too.

23

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

24

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Okay.
Thank you very much.
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MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Yeah.

2

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

4

address traffic?

Okay.

5

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Councilmember Nishiki.
Can I have an expert that can

Not me.
And I want to turn to the Kulamalu

7

Traffic Study Exhibit 51.

8

will have to look at the exhibit.

9

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

I guess Council members
Find that page.

Exhibit 51?

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

11

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

13

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Yes.
It's near the end.
Near the end.

I'm not a traffic consultant, but -- I

14

must have a different report, because I don't

15

have

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah.

So this is a biggy, I

17

think, for this community.

18

consultant?

19

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

So where is your traffic

We didn't bring one today because he's in

20

the midst of doing the traffic study right now.

21

so we can bring him at the next Council meeting.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah.

And

And

and the reason why I

23

ask this, Mr. Chairman, is I don't know if this

24

traffic study that we are seeing here in March of

25

1999 included now traffic that would be generated by
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Kamehameha Schools.

2

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

It did up to 500 students.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

4

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Up to 500?

Right.
So then this is not a good traffic

6

study in lieu that you represented to Councilman

7

Molina that your full build-out will be 1,100.

8

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

In that -- in that regard, yes.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

10

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Right.

Right.
And so I would like to know

12

existing now and I was looking at these maps, sir.

13

And they tend to be not a good map in lieu of

14

Councilwoman Johnson expressed some concerns about

15

the proximity of the roadway to Kekaulike and some

16

of the I guess conditions which when I looked at

17

page 1 on the finding of the existing conditions,

18

sir, and now with the expansion of the campus, I

19

would think that it would be further impacts to this

20

area.

21

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Actually--

The concern that was raised, also,

23

and I would like to see maps on, when you have your

24

build out, it is my understanding now that you only

25

have one ingress and egress.

And you mentioned
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earlier that only when an emergency situation exists

2

will that alternative road be used.

3

some concern for many of us as we look at what is

4

now existing on Haleakala Highway and your future

5

plans.

6

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

8

9

I think this is

As I'm
Will you have your expert at the

next meeting?
MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Yes, we will.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

13

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Did you want to comment on that, Vince?

14

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Oh, no.

15

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Member Nishiki was making comments and

16
17

Thank you.

Okay.
Mr. Chairman.

never let you get a word in edgewise.
MR. SHIGEKUNI:

No.

As I mentioned before, we're in the

18

midst of doing an updated traffic impact study to

19

address full build-out and we'll get that to the

20

Council as soon as it's available.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

22

complete?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Councilmember Nishiki, you were

If you are, may I
Yeah.

The reason is because they

24

talk about installation of traffic signalization and

25

the gamut, and so I would like to see what that
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timing is in regards to what now exists.

2

heard earlier from some of your representations,

3

this development is moving on a so-called fast

4

track.

5

community with -- As you know, sir, if you live

6

here, traffic has been a main concern for this

7

community.

8

irresponsible not to get the updated study and see

9

how it will work with the current highway system

10

And as we

So we don't want to have the impact on this

And I think that this body would be very

that is now in place.

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

12

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Thank you.

Councilwoman Tavares.
Yes.

I wanted to know about

13

the -- how the sewage was going to be handled from

14

this campus.

15

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Oh.

Right now there's a system.

It goes

16

into a system below, a private system.

And it was

17

designed to accommodate the full build-out of the

18

campus.

19

meeting.

I can get you more details at the next

20

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

21

details on that.

22

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

23

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

Yeah.

I would appreciate more

Sure.
And how that system is going to

24

accommodate this project as well as the Kulamalu

25

project.
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MR. SHIGEKUNI:

2

meeting.

We'll bring our civil engineer at the next

3

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:

4

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Councilmember Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair.

Good morning, sir.

6

I just wanted to get a

7

count, if you can provide it for me, how much

8

students will be in the juniors and seniors classes

9

once this project is fully built up.

Because I'm

10

looking at the potential additional drivers to the

11

campus.

12

will be getting their cars.

13

As you know, kids from 16 and a half on

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Yes.

I'll bring Dr. Chamberlain up and

14

then I'll ask him to also address our bus program

15

that

16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

17

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

18

Okay.

I'm going to talk about busing and I'm

going to talk about students.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

22

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Okay.

Juniors and seniors.
One of those days.
Okay.

It's a Monday morning.

There will be

23

100 and -- there are plans for 144 juniors and 144

24

seniors.

25

about already from an operational point of view is

One of the things we have also talked
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1

that just because students are passing their exams

2

does not mean students get to drive.

3

of the things that several schools do to control

4

student behavior as well to reinforce things.

5

it's not just an opportunity that says, I have my

6

license, now I get to drive to school, no.

7

again this ties back to busing, but also it's a

8

privilege to drive to school if you have that.

9

the idea is that's one way we can control not only

10

student driving, but also parking and the need for

11

parking.

12

I

And that's one

So

Because

So

have in front of me a chart in terms of bus

13

ridership, which has averaged around between three

14

quarters and 80 percent of our students as we've

15

looked over the last couple years.

16

this year, we have just finished the school year

17

with 272 students and 209 ride the bus.

18

continue to grow, you can look at that kind of

19

percentage riding on buses, which, again, reduces

20

the amount of cars that are driving on the campus.

21

So I think that addresses the issue you're raising

22

about just because we have 288 11th and 12th

23

graders, that's not 288 cars because we control that

24

not only in terms of busing, but also in terms of

25

operational administrative policy.

So, for example,
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you, Dr. Chamberlain.

2

I appreciate it.

3

school builds out and it would be nice if in the

4

state the rest of the schools could kind of promote

5

that, but, as you know, it's very difficult.

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

8

9

I hope that ratio continues as the

Yeah.
But, again, I appreciate you giving

us that information here, which is very helpful.
MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

You're welcome.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

11

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Thank you.

Thank you.

Dr. Chamberlain, in following up on

12

Councilmember Molina's question, the vehicles you're

13

anticipating going to campus each day that would

14

include faculty, your staff, as well as students,

15

what is your anticipated volume of traffic per day

16

at build-out?

17

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Do you have any idea?

No, I -- I'm just looking at, you know,

18

we have 190 -- Let me turn it over to somebody else,

19

because, again, I have given the number of staffing

20

and I know what the busing percentages are.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

22

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Vince, if you could address that.

24

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

Yeah.

25

Okay.
Vince, perhaps you can address that.

I think if we could, we would like

to bring our traffic consultant to the next meeting
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1

and we can more intelligently respond to that

2

question.

3

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Okay.

Why don't we do that?

4

Because I think the question really that

5

Councilmember Molina is asking is:

6

total traffic volume that needs to be dealt with?

7

If we're looking at campus and a lot of the students

8

are being bused and the impact would be a lot less

9

than perhaps, you know, if every student were

What is the

10

driving their own vehicle.

At the same time if

11

you're having a lot of students dropped off by their

12

parents versus students that are being bused,

13

there's a different impact.

14

the campus may be considerably different than

15

perhaps Kekaulike right above that.

16

accurate idea of what is happening and what we can

17

anticipate in that area, I think we have your

18

traffic consultant answering those types of

19

questions.

So the traffic going to

And to get an

20

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

At the next meeting, yes.

21

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

That would be what we would be looking at.

22
23

Councilmember Johnson, you had a question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

No.

In -- When the traffic

24

consultant does come next time, too, it's going to

25

be really helpful if -- I think Councilmember
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1

Nishiki also kind of asked this same question.

2

Configurement-wise, when you have the entry to King

3

Kekaulike and the traffic flow that goes into that

4

campus and then your projected traffic flow coming

5

into your campus, to be able to show on a map what

6

the proximity is between those two, you know,

7

intersections and are they going to create other

8

conflicts because of timing and, you know, school

9

hours.

I know we have this problem at -- you know,

10

up Lahainaluna Road in West Maui and so there's this

11

intense use of that particular roadway so there's

12

traffic jams every morning and all the schools have

13

the same hours.

14

idea of what that would be.

15

very helpful for the people traversing that area,

16

too, who may not have school children that are

17

attending either school, but just simply have to

18

either leave for work or, you know, come back at

19

night when they finish their jobs and what those

20

hours would be.

21

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

22

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

23

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

25

So if you could maybe give us some
I think it would be

Will do.

Okay.

Thank you.
Councilmember Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair.

For the record, the school start time is, is
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that 7:45?

1

2

MR. SHIGEKUNI:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:
here.

4

Oh, I have to have Dr. Chamberlain.
Sorry.

Playing musical chairs

My apologies.

5

?:

Stay up there.

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Okay.

We currently actually have two

7

different start times, one for elementary and one

8

for middle school, and I believe it's like 7:40 and

9

7:55.

We do have a high school time that will be

10

starting probably the same because they'll be

11

sharing the same process.

12

actually have probably three different start times.

13

Probably a little bit later, though, than King

14

Kekaulike because we also have the idea of how do we

15

balance all that together.

16
17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

And possibly staggering school

hours?

18

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

20

But eventually we'll

Yeah.
Okay.

Now, what is the school end

time?

21

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Approximately 3 o'clock.

22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

23

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Okay.

Approximately.

24

King Kekaulike.

25

the agegroup.

It's later than, again,

Between 2:30 and 3:00 depending on
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Okay.

Thank you.

This is my

2

last -- that is my last question with Dr.

3

Chamberlain, so I don't have to keep calling you

4

back.

5

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA:

Thank you.

7

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Councilmember Kane.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

Okay.

Okay.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Dr. Chamberlain.

10

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Good morning,

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Dain.

Because there's been requests for

12

information for a future meeting, Mr. Chair, can I

13

also ask if Dr. Chamberlain is not able to answer

14

that perhaps Dr. Chamberlain briefly and maybe at a

15

later time maybe a little more detail to understand

16

the plan that the estate has -- Kamehameha School

17

has regarding all three of their schools and what

18

directions they're going?

19

is the school I don't think is looking at creating

20

redundancies in their programs.

21

they're having permanent campuses here on Maui as

22

well as East Hawaii on the Big Island as well as

23

Kapalama over on Oahu, if there is going to be

24

and this might address, maybe, Member Hokama's

25

comments regarding providing opportunities for

And what I mean by that
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1

various kids in the rural areas and outlying areas.

2

As an example, if Hawaii campus on the island of

3

Hawaii is going to have more of a focus of

4

agricultural direction, Maui having a direction more

5

of hi-tech and business, Oahu having perhaps what

6

they already have instituted over there.

7

give us a brief kind of understanding of the bigger

8

picture as far as what the school is trying to

9

incorporate into the three schools and the

10
11

Can you

directions that they are looking at?
MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Let me give you a really brief answer

12

and then also promise that I would have a more

13

comprehensive response.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Thank you.

Please remember that the school actually

16

has five major educational extensions going on right

17

now with the sixth one just starting with the

18

charter conversion schools.

19

three campuses as the major focus on Big Island, on

20

Maui, then on Oahu.

21

college liberal arts program serving children across

22

the State.

23

there tends to be -- Again, there will be more of

24

academy, more of agricultural oriented towards the

25

Big Island.

We think about the

Oahu continues to focus on a

I have explained briefly our focus.

There's also two other ones that we
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1

tend to forget about, and one is the issue of early

2

childhood.

3

for helping even more children get advantage of

4

early childhood as it's trying to reach more

5

students across the State that way.

6

is extension education and how we do things in terms

7

of distance education, summer programs, those kinds

8

of things.

9

initiatives going through.

The school has just announced a process

The other one

So the school has all these different
And, in fact,

I was just

10

in a retreat with our CEO about two weeks ago and

11

the issue of how do we tie all of these things

12

together in a way that is understandable to other

13

people is very, very important.

14

we're doing different things if a child on Big

15

Island wants to take advantage of another situation,

16

how does that happen?

17

conversations going on right now to make sure that

18

happens.

19

it so redundant that it's overlapping.

20

have the resources to do that.

21

In terms of also as

So there are several

But, you're right, we don't want to create

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

We don't

Thank you, Dr. Chamberlain.

And if

22

you could perhaps provide us with maybe more of a

23

road map or the intentions of Kamehameha Schools

24

regarding all the programs and how they're going to

25

function and related to I think some of the
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1

questions that were brought up this morning

2

primarily about we here in Maui County, our focus or

3

our parameters of responsibility are Maui County.

4

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

5

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

10

I understand.
So it includes Molokai, Lanai.

Yeah.
As well as Maui proper.

Yeah.
And although Kamehameha Schools is

Statewide and actually reaches out beyond --

11

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Mainland.

12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

-- the State, that because this

13

request -- bring it right back down to the specific

14

request for change of zoning.

15

need to provide us with some -- some connections,

16

some relevance --

17

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

You still, I think,

Yeah.
to your requests and the issues

19

that we have facing us in trying to accommodate Maui

20

County's --

21

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

23

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Yeah.
populace.

I hear that.
And so if you can provide us with

perhaps at the next meeting some tie-in to that to

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

62

LU 06/17/02

1

respond to specific issues, I think that would help

2

clarify your folks' mission and make it relevant.

3

And its relevance to what we're trying to achieve as

4

well, is accommodate which Maui is primarily -- Maui

5

County is primarily a rural.

6

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

8

9

Yeah.
And still a lot of agriculture going

on.
MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

Absolutely.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

MR. CHAMBERLAIN:

12

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Thank you.

Appreciate that.

I understand.
Okay.

And just as a reminder, Council

13

members, this is a land use decision and we are --

14

our major concern is to look at the appropriateness

15

of changing the land use description of this

16

particular property.

17

discussion as far as the program goes because I

18

think all of us are interested in what's going on

19

and we would like to be able to suggest program

20

changes as well to incorporate consideration within

21

the County, but our basic concern is with the land

22

use appropriateness in the zoning.

23

questions relating to traffic and the impacts on the

24

community specific to the land use, we will focus

25

on.

I've been allowing a lot of

Okay.

So the

I will allow some of the discussion outside of
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1

that, but, again, the primary focus needs to be on

2

what our job is.

3

making sure that the appropriate requirements that

4

are in our County Code and that the project is going

5

to be required to have according to the Code and the

6

laws are appropriately done at the department level.

7

We can have discussions on them to make sure that we

8

are within standards and that the community's impact

9

is minimized, but at the same time, again, the focus

10

The departments are charged with

is on land use.
At this time what I am going to ask for is

11
12

I'm going to ask for Joe to give a -- the

13

Department's comments.

Then after that,

14

Councilmember Nishiki.

First Joe.

15

MR. ALUETA:

As indicated in our transmittal to the

16

Council, the site is approximately 84.4 acres in

17

land.

18

currently and they are seeking for P-l or Publici

19

Quasi-Public District for the Maui campus.

20

also designated within the Makawao/Pukalani/Kula

21

Community Plan as being Public/Quasi-Public.

22

the primary reason for the change in zoning request

23

is it is a condition of No.2, which is a height

24

variance that is -- that the applicant shall obtain

25

the change in zoning within five years to the

It is located within the Residential District
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1

appropriate zoning that will accommodate the design

2

requirements of the campus.

3

exhibit as part of the staff report.

That's attached as an

It should be noted -- I would note that

4
5

within the Residential District a school is a

6

permitted use.

7

residential and it does lie outside of the Special

8

Management Area.

9

hold a meeting, a public hearing on November 14th,

Currently it is State Urban.

It's

The Maui Planning Commission did

10

2000.

11

application, one person raised concerns about

12

streetlights on Kula Highway, and there were nine

13

letters in support.

14

Five people testified in favor of the

The Department is recommending -- or the

15

Planning Commission, excuse me,

16

approval of the conditional zoning in accordance

17

with the recommendations of the Planning Department.

18
19
20

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

is recommending

Councilmember Nishiki, you had a

question or comment.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

No, not with Joe.

I just wanted

21

to make sure that at our next meeting that we have

22

the Maui County Police Department with an officer

23

that is familiar with the existing traffic in that

24

area.

25

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

We can make a request.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So I would hope that

and also

2

the State Department of Transportation in regards to

3

what that area is going to look like in regards to

4

highway condition.

5

lanes, if I am not mistaken.

6

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

8

?:

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

10

I think it's right now two

That's correct.
And very rural in nature.

(Inaudible) .

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Okay.

Yeah.

Thank you.

Any further questions or requests?

Then at this point any other discussion that

11

12

you want to have with this topic?

13

will do is we will defer this item and we will

14

reschedule the meeting to incorporate all the new

15

information that's being requested.

16

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

17

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

18
19

ACTION:

If not, what we

Any objections?

No objections.
Okay.

Then we will reschedule that.

DEFER

CHAIR ARAKAWA:

Any other discussion before I adjourn the

20

meeting since that was our last topic?

21

have a meeting at 1:30 -- at 1:30.

22

adjourned.

23

ADJOURNED:

If not, we

This meeting is

(Gavel.)

10:30 a.m.

24
25
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